
 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
The next meeting of the LICENSING will be held at 6.30 pm on TUESDAY, 2 
NOVEMBER 2021 in the Council Chamber, 13 Church Street, Clitheroe, BB7 2RA. 
 
I do hope you can be there. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

2.   TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS 
MEETING 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, 
OTHER REGISTRABLE AND NON REGISTRABLE 
INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable 
interest in respect of matters contained in the agenda. 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

 

ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 

5.   ANNUAL REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES 
 

(Pages 7 - 16) 

6.   PRIVATE SECURITY ACT 2001 
 

(Pages 17 - 42) 

7.   GAMBLING ACT 2005 - REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF 
PRINCIPLES - OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION 
 

(Pages 43 - 84) 

8.   EXPIRY OF WHALLEY CUMULATIVE IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT - REVIEW OF RESPONSES TO RECENT 
SURVEY 
 

(Pages 85 - 104) 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 

9.   TAXI ENFORCEMENT OPERATION - UPDATE 
 

(Pages 105 - 106) 

Public Document Pack



 

10.   MEMBER TRAINING 
 

(Pages 107 - 108) 

11.   REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE 
BODIES 
 

 

12.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 

None. 
 

 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 

None. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Electronic agendas sent to members of Licensing – Councillor Jan Alcock JP (Chair), 
Councillor Richard Bennett (Vice-Chair), Councillor Ian Brown, Councillor Stella 
Brunskill JP, Councillor Steve Farmer, Councillor Gaynor Hibbert, Councillor Simon 
Hore, Councillor Angeline Humphreys, Councillor Richard Newmark, Councillor Donna 
O'Rourke, Councillor Simon O'Rourke, Councillor Sarah Rainford, Councillor James 
(Jim) Rogerson, Councillor Gary Scott and Councillor Robin Walsh. 
 
 
 
Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk  

mailto:committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk


 

 
 

Minutes of Licensing 
 
Meeting Date:  Tuesday, 7 September 2021, starting at  6.30 pm 
Present:  Councillor J Alcock (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 
 
R Bennett 
I Brown 
S Brunskill 
S Farmer 
S Hore 
D O'Rourke 
 

S O'Rourke 
S Rainford 
M Robinson 
J Rogerson 
G Scott 
R Walsh 
 

 
In attendance: Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Solicitor 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor B Buller 
 

255 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for the meeting were received from Councillors Humpheys and Newmark. 
 

256 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 June 2021 were approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman. 
 

257 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
Councillor Rogerson declared an interest in Agenda Item 5 – Gambling Act 2005 – 
Review of Statement of Principles. 
  

258 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
 

259 LICENSING ENFORCEMENT - VERBAL UPDATE  
 
The Chairman welcomed to the meeting Licensing Sergeant Gary Hennighan, from 
Lancashire Constabulary. 
 
Sergeant Hennighan and the Council’s Licensing Enforcement Officer provided an 
update on the night-time economy in the borough, which appeared to be improving, 
especially in Whalley. 
 
Sergeant Hennighan informed members that the police aim to take a joint approach to 
policing licensed premises and sought support wherever possible from residents and 
other local agencies such as the Council. 
 
Sergeant Hennighan went on to say that increased police presence in an area can 
often act as a deterrent in preventing crime and that he was pleased there had been a 
relaunch of the Pub Watch scheme.  
 

260 GAMBLING ACT 2005 - REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

The Chief Executive submitted a report informing the Committee of the requirement to 
review the Council’s Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act 2005 (“Act”) and 
seek Committee’s authorisation to consult upon the amendment attached at Appendix 
1 to the report. 

 
Members were reminded that: 

 It is a legal requirement under the Act that a Council must have a Statement of 
Principles which is reviewed and published at least every three years.  

 If amendments are made during the three-year period since the Statement of 
Principles was last legally reviewed, it must still be reviewed again, in line with 
the 3 yearly requirements. 

 The Council’s current Statement of Principles was first approved and took 
effect from 31 January 2007, and it has been updated and re-published in 
2010, 2013, 2016, and 2019.   

 The Statement of Principles must be published four weeks before it comes 
into effect.  

 It comes into effect on 31 January 2022 and hence it must be published by 3 
January 2022 the Statement will then remain in force until January 2025. 
 

The report noted that there are three licensing objectives under the Gambling Act 
2005 namely:  

 Preventing gambling from being a source of, or associated with, crime and 
disorder. 

 Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way. 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable people from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling. 

 
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 

Approved the draft Gambling Statement of Principles detailed in Appendix 1 and 2 of 
the report and authorised the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to consult upon 
them between 10 September 2021 and 24 October 2021 and that the results of that 
consultation be reported back to this committee. 
 

261 ELECTRIC AND HYBRID VEHICLES  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing the Committee of issues in relation 
to the possible introduction of a requirement for or support for the use of hybrid or 
electric vehicles for taxi and private hire use. 

 
Members were reminded that at the meeting of this Committee on 23 March 2021: 

 They considered the possibility of amending the taxi licensing regime to favour 
the use of electric or hybrid vehicles 

 That officers were requested to consider the approach adopted by other 
authorities.  

Members were also reminded that at the time of the March 2021 meeting, the Ribble 
Valley taxi fleet included 2 hybrid vehicles and no electric vehicles. 
 
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 

Authorised the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to add the matter as an 
agenda item for discussion at the next Annual Taxi meeting. 
 

Page 4



 

 
 

262 RE-OPENING OF LICENSED PREMISES - UPDATE  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing Committee on the steps taken by 
the Council to assist hospitality venues to reopen safely. 

 
Members were reminded that at the time of the last Committee meeting on 15 June 
2021, central government had postponed the removal of restrictions under Step 4 of 
the COVID-19 Roadmap until a date no earlier than 19 July 2021.  The relaxation of 
restrictions had proceeded on that date. 
 
The report noted that: 

 The Council’s COVID-19 and licensing enforcement staff had been proactive 
in supporting hospitality business and the licensed trade for reopening. 

 Since the start of June 2021, the enforcement staff had received 23 COVID-19 
related complaints regarding hospitality venues.  

 The main complaints had related to customers not wearing masks, or staff not 
self-isolating when it was believed they should have been.  

 All complaints had been investigated but no formal action had been taken, 
either due to lack of evidence or because it was considered that verbal advice 
was sufficient. 

 27 requests for guidance or advice had been received. 

In advance of the removal of restrictions, further advice had been provided to venues.   
 

263 MEMBER TRAINING - UPDATE  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing Committee of the training to be 
provided on Licensing Sub-committees. 

 
Members were reminded that: 

 Licensing Sub-Committees are held when required to determine licensing 
applications and/or review licences. 

 Licensing responsibility is heavily governed by statute and guidance; 
therefore, the discharge of these functions requires that Members have a good 
understanding of the latest statutory frameworks.  

 Licensing, as an area of local authority decision-making, has become a fertile 
topic for legal challenge. 
 

The report noted that the training will focus on the procedural and legal issues 
surrounding Sub-committees in the context of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

264 REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies. 
 

265 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
No reports. 
 
The meeting closed at 7.05 pm 
 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Mike 
Hill mike.hill@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE                                                                                                         

   
 

meeting date: TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2021 
title: ANNUAL FEES AND CHARGES  
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To determine the annual fees for hackney carriage, private hire, scrap metal and sex 

establishment licences. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

 Community Objectives -        
  
 

 Corporate Priorities -    
 

 Other Considerations -   
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences 
 
2.1 The Council has power to charge for licences, subject to statutory provisions which 

both give rise to the power to charge and specify the way the charge for certain licences 
has to be calculated.   

 
2.2 The relevant provisions are contained in the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1976. 
 
2.3 Section 53(2) is the relevant provision for: 
 

 driver’s licences for hackney carriages; 
 

 driver’s licences for private hire vehicles. 
 

2.4 Section 70 is the relevant provision for: 
 

 hackney carriage vehicle licences; 
 

 private hire vehicle licences; 
 

 private hire operator’s licences. 
 
2.5 Changes to the licence fees in respect of hackney carriage vehicles, private hire 

vehicles and private hire operator licences must be advertised in one newspaper, 
circulated in the local area 28 days before the change in charges takes effect. 

 
2.6 The legislation provides that the fees should be set at a level which provides “such a 

fee as they consider reasonable with a view to recovering the costs of issue and 
administration”.   

 
2.8 The current fees for each type of licence are set out in the first column of Appendix 1. 

 

The Council aims to be a well-managed Council 
providing efficient services based on identified 
customer needs.  The fees charged for licences 
fund part of that service and should reflect the 
costs incurred whilst being set at a reasonable 
level for licence holders. 

DECISION 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

Scrap Metal Dealers Licences 
 
2.9 Schedule 1 paragraph 6 of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 provides that “(1) An 

application must be accompanied by a fee set by the authority. (2) In setting a fee 
under the paragraph, the authority must have regard to any guidance issued from time 
to time by the Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury”. 

 
2.10 On 17 September 2013, Committee considered the report of the Chief Executive, and 

approved the fees, which were to apply once the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 came 
into force on 1 October 2013, in doing so Committee considered the calculation of the 
fees and the Home Office Guidance.  Committee has considered the fees annually 
since that date.  The current fees are set out in Appendix 2 to this report. 
 
Sex Establishment Licence 
 

2.11 Schedule 3, paragraph 19 of the Local Government (miscellaneous provisions) Act 
1982 provides that “An applicant for the grant, [variation,] renewal or transfer of a 
licence under this Schedule shall pay a reasonable fee determined by the appropriate 
authority.” 

 
2.12 On 6 September 2011, Committee considered a report of the Council’s solicitor and 

approved the fees set out as Appendix 2 of that report.  Those fees were reconsidered 
annually since that date.  The current fees are set out in Appendix 3 to this report. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licence 
 
3.1  In recent years licence fees have generally been uplifted annually in line with inflation.  

The Council is recommending uplifting the fees by reference to inflation (based on 3%) 
as this is the amount by which we are advised that the Council’s costs have increased. 
The proposed annual fees (rounded up or down as most appropriate) for 2022/2023 
are set out in the third column of Appendix 1. 

 
 Scrap Metal Dealers Licences 
 
3.4 The Scrap Metal Licence fees have now been in place for 6 years and a limited number 

of licences have been issued.  The Council does not have sufficient evidence therefore 
to test whether the underlying basis on which the fees were originally calculated 
requires amendment but proposes that the fees rise by 3% as this is the amount by 
which we are advised that the Council’s costs have increased.  The proposed fees for 
2022/2023 are set out in Appendix 2.  

 
 Sex Establishment Licences 
 
3.3 Since the fees were set on 6 September 2011, the Council has not received any 

applications to licence a Sex Establishment within its area.  There is therefore no 
information to suggest that the underlying basis for the calculation of the fees should 
be changed, but the Council proposes to increase the fees by 3% as this is the amount 
by which we are advised that the Council’s costs have increased.  The proposed fees 
for 2022/2023 are set out in Appendix 3. 

  
 
  

Page 8



 

4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

 Resources – The Council must advertise the revised taxi and private hire fees in a 
local newspaper. 

 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – Committee must set fees at a level, which 
must not exceed the costs of administering the licensing process. 

 Political – N/A 
 

 Reputation – N/A 
 

 Equality and Diversity – N/A 
 
5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Agree to set the fees for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences for the year 

2022/2023 as those set out in Appendix 1. 
 
5.2 Agree to set the fees for Scrap Metal Dealers Licences for the year 2022/2023 as those 

set out in Appendix 2. 
 
5.3 Agree to set the fees for Sex Establishment Licences for the year 2022/2023 as those 

set out in Appendix 3. 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER    MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR                                                                                       CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 
 
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216.  
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

PRIVATE HIRE & HACKNEY CARRIAGE 2021 from 1 April 2022 from 1 April 

 £ £ 

Driver’s application/renewal annual Licence 

Driver’s application/renewal 3-year licence 

64.90 

171.67 

66.90 

176.90 

Replacement Driver’s Badge 13.46 13.90 

Vehicle Licences: 

  ANNUAL: Up to 3 years old 

  6 MONTHS: Over 3 years but not exceeding 7 years 

  4 MONTHS: Over 7 years 

 

181.25 

96.10 

68.44 

 

188.70 

99.00 

70.50 

Discount on previous Licence (1/12th annual) 15.10 15.60 

Transfer of Licence on change of ownership 26.83 27.70 

New or replacement: 

- Plates 

- Brackets 

 

15.00 

15.00 

 

15.50 

15.50 

Private Hire Operators annual licence 
167.90 per annum 

5 vehicles or fewer 

173.00 per annum 

5 vehicles or fewer 

 

Additional Vehicles 

 

13.60 14.10 

Private Hire Operators 3-year licence 
444.82 per annum 

5 vehicles or fewer. 

458.20 per annum 

5 vehicles or fewer. 

 

Additional Vehicles 

 

34.88 36.00 

Private Hire Operators 5-year licence 
741.34 per annum 

5 vehicles or fewer 

763.80 per annum 

5 vehicles or fewer 

 

Additional Vehicles 

 

57.53 59.30 

 

Change to Operators Licence 

 

12.85 13.30 

Copy of Operators Licence 16.83 17.40 

Logbooks (100 sheets) each 2.00 2.10 

Knowledge test: 

-   First one free (paper) 

-   In person 

 

8.67 

17.14 

 

9.00 

17.70 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

Scrap Metal Dealers From 1 April 2021 From 1 April 2022 

 £ £ 

Application/Renewal of Site Licence 315.83 326.00 

Variation of Site Licence  204.92 212.00 

Application/Renewal of Collector’s 

Licence  
227.77 235.00 

Variation of Mobile Collector’s 

Licence 
182.27 188.00 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 

SEX ESTABLISHMENTS From 1 April 2021 From 1 April 2022 

 £ £ 

Grant of Sex Shop 3,412.51 3,515.00 

Grant of Sex Cinema 3,412.51 3,515.00 

Grant of Sexual 

Entertainment Venue 
5,687.11 5,858.00 

Renewal of Sexual 

Entertainment Venue 
2,843.76 2,930.00 

Transfer of Sexual 

Entertainment Venue 
570.00 588.00 

Variation of Sexual 

Entertainment Venue 
570.00 588.00 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: 2 NOVEMBER 2021 

title: PRIVATE SECURITY INDUSTRY ACT 2001 – POWERS OF AUTHORITY 

submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR 

 

1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To seek Committee’s approval for the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to 

nominate officers to the Security Industry Authority (“the SIA”) for such officers to be 
granted powers of inspection by the SIA under Section 19(2) of the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001 (“the Act”) and to arrange any training that may be required. 

 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

 Community Objectives  } 

 Corporate Priorities  } 

 Other Considerations  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 

2.1 Within the Ribble Valley, a number of licensed premises utilise the services of door 
staff licensed by the SIA.  Some of these establishments engage these staff voluntarily, 
based on their own risk assessments. Other establishments have door staff on certain 
days and at certain times, because of conditions on their licence.  

 
2.2 Currently, the Council’s licensing enforcement staff do not have the power to require 

door staff at premises to produce documents or information to verify the presence and 
actions of the door staff as a member of the security industry.  In most circumstances, 
such documents or information are produced voluntarily on request, by professional 
staff who wish to cooperate with the Council and other regulatory authorities. However, 
currently the Council’s officers do not have the power to require such production. 

 
2.3 An approach has been received from the SIA seeking to establish whether the Council 

would wish them to grant powers to certain specified officers of the Council under 
Section 19(2) of the Act. An extract from Section 19 of the Act can be found at Appendix 
1. A leaflet issued by the SIA on their enforcement powers can be found at appendix 
2.  Particular attention is drawn to page 13 of the leaflet which explains powers of entry 
and in particular powers to gather information by the SIA and those with written 
authority (such as any nominated and authorised officers of the Council). 

  

DECISION  

 

Approval of this nomination will promote the 
Council’s aim to be a well-managed Council, 
and to help make peoples lives safer and 
healthier.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 

3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The approach which has been received from the SIA is supported by a specimen letter 

of application, which can be found here at Appendix 3.  Members will note that, if they 
are minded to approve the recommendation in this report, confirmation will be provided 
that any Council officers nominated are fit and proper and appropriately trained to be 
granted authority under section 19(2) of the Act. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications 

 Resources – resources will be expended in the time involved in submission of the 
application and any appropriate training. 

 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – on the next revision of part 3(2) of the 
Council’s Constitution, the addition of the Security Industry Act 2001 to the non-
exhaustive list of statutory provisions in Appendix 1. 

 

 Political – no implications identified. 
 

 Reputation – the Council’s reputation will be enhanced by the acquisition of 
additional powers to address issues of public safety. 

 

 Equality & Diversity – no implications identified.  
 

5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Approve the Head of Legal and Democratic Services  
 

5.1.1 to nominate Council officers to the Security Industry Association to be granted 
powers of inspection by the SIA under Section 19(2) of the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001; and 

 
5.1.2 to arrange for any appropriate training for Council officers so nominated.  
 

STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 

SOLICITOR  CHIEF EXECUTIVE   

For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 

Page 18



Private Security Industry Act 2001- S19(2) 

 

Inspection and information 

19     Powers of entry and inspection 

  
 

  (2) A person authorised in writing for the purpose by the Authority may require 

any person appearing to him to be a regulated person to produce to him any 

documents or other information relating to any matter connected with-  

  (a) any licensable conduct which has been or may be engaged in by the 

person so appearing; 

  (b) the provision by the person so appearing of any security industry 

services; 

  (c) any matters in respect of which conditions are imposed on the 

person so appearing by virtue of a licence or of an approval granted in 

accordance with arrangements under section 15. 

 

  (5) A person is guilty of an offence if-  

  (a) he intentionally obstructs any person in the exercise of any power 

conferred by subsection (1); 

  (b) he fails, without reasonable excuse, to comply with any requirement 

imposed by subsection (2); or 

  (c) he makes an unauthorised disclosure of any information obtained by 

him in the exercise of any power conferred by this section, or as a 

consequence of the exercise of any such power by another. 

 

  (6) For the purposes of this section a disclosure of information obtained by any 

person as mentioned in subsection (5)(c) is authorised if, and only if, it is made-  

  (a) for the purposes of the carrying out by the Authority of any of its 

functions under this Act; or 

  (b) for the purposes of any criminal proceedings. 

 

  (7) A person guilty of an offence under this section shall be liable, on summary 

conviction, to a term of imprisonment not exceeding six months or to a fine not 

exceeding level 5 on the standard scale, or to both. 

  

  (8) In this section "regulated person" means-  

  (a) the holder of any licence granted under this Act; 

  (b) any person who engages in licensable conduct without being the 

holder of a licence under this Act; 

  (c) any person who is for the time being approved in accordance with 

arrangements under section 15 in respect of any services which 

regulations under section 17 prohibit him from providing unless so 

approved; or 

  (d) any person who is not so approved but provides security industry 

services which he is prohibited by any such regulations from providing. 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ENFORCEMENT 

What to expect   

from the SIA 

August 2018 

 
APPENDIX 2 

Page 21



 

 

 

Page 22



 

 

1 

Contents 

Introduction 2 

About the SIA 2 

Why have I been given this leaflet? 3 

What offence(s) could I have committed? 3 

Am I responsible for what goes on in my company/on my premises? 5 

Security Company 5 

Customers and employees of security companies 5 

Enforcement responses for offences under the PSIA 2001 5 

What mitigating factors will the SIA take into account when assessing 

which enforcement response is appropriate 6 

The SIA expects compliance with the law at all times 6 

The weight given to any of these factors will be dependent on the 

particular case 6 

Sanctions and disposal of offences 7 

Non-Statutory Disposals 7 

Revoking your licence 8 

Suspending your licence 8 

ACS Sanctions 8 

Prosecution 9 

What factors will the SIA consider when taking a decision to prosecute 

or refer the case to the Procurator Fiscal in Scotland 10 

Detention and arrest 11 
Page 23



Enforcement – What to expect from the SIA 

 

SIA powers of entry and information gathering 11 

What can I expect from other agencies? 13 

At the end of SIA enquiries 14 

What are my rights? 14 

How do I appeal against an enforcement decision? 14 

Prosecution 15 

How do I complain? 16 

 

 

Introduction 
For regulation to be effective and trusted, it is vital that appropriate action is taken against 

those who no longer meet our criteria or who break the law. Therefore, anyone facing 

enforcement action should know what to expect from the Security Industry Authority 

(SIA). We are also required under the Private Security Industry Act (PSIA) 2001, to give 

guidance about how those authorised under the Act exercise power of entry. This leaflet 

sets out to meet both these requirements. 

If we suspect an offence has been committed, prosecution is not our only option; we 

aim to encourage compliance with the law in the first instance and will do all we can to 

help people meet their obligations. However, in appropriate cases we have the will and 

capability to prosecute offenders, and to seek the confiscation of assets that have been 

obtained as a result of criminal activity. 

We are committed to the principles set out in the Legislative and Regulatory 

Reform Act (2006) and to the Regulators’ Code, a statutory code of practice for 

regulators.  This means our activities are targeted only where action is needed and 

in a way that is transparent, accountable, proportional and consistent. 

Page 24



 

 

3 

About the SIA 
The SIA is the organisation responsible for regulating the private security industry in the 

United Kingdom by the compulsory licensing of individuals undertaking designated activities. 

We also manage the voluntary Approved Contractor Scheme (ACS). 

SIA regulation currently covers manned guarding (including security guarding, door 

supervision, close protection, cash and valuables in transit, and public space surveillance 

using CCTV), key holding and vehicle immobilising.1 

Why have I been given this leaflet? 
If you are subject to compliance enquiries or facing action by the SIA because you are 

suspected of committing an offence or a breach of ACS terms and conditions, then you 

should read this leaflet. It will explain what SIA Investigations and Compliance Officers 

(and those authorised with the power of entry and inspection under section 19 of the 

PSIA 2001), can and cannot do and the manner in which they should conduct themselves.2 

This leaflet also explains your responsibilities and rights when encountering SIA action. 

What offence(s) could I have 

committed? 
If you are regulated by the SIA (as described in section 3 and Schedule 2 of the PSIA 

2001) or you are an approved contactor, then you should be aware of the following 

offences created by the Act: 

• Engaging in licensable conduct without a licence – section 3 (1) 

• Contravening licence conditions – section 9 (4) 

• Obstructing SIA officials or those with delegated authority – section 19 (5) (a) 

• Failing to provide information required by the SIA – section 19 (5) (b) 

                                                           
1 Northern Ireland only. 
2 SIA Investigations and Compliance Officers includes anyone deployed by the SIA to carry  

out investigations. 

Page 25



Enforcement – What to expect from the SIA 

 

• Using unlicensed security operatives – section 5 (1) 

• Using unlicensed wheel clampers – section 6 (1) (Northern Ireland only) 

• Falsely claiming approved contractor status – section 16 (2) 

To see the full text of the Act or a summary go to: 

www.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk/the-act 

Whether or not you are regulated by the SIA, you should be aware of the following 

offences: 

• Making false statements to the SIA – section 22 (1) 

• In England, Wales and Northern Ireland you may be liable under sections 44-46 of the 

Serious Crime Act 2007 (SCA 2007), for the offence of encouraging or assisting an 

offence. The SCA 2007 has three offences: 

– offence (SCA 2007) section 44 – intentionally encouraging or assisting an 

offence 

– offence (SCA 2007) section 45 – encouraging or assisting an offence, believing it 

will be committed 

– offence (SCA 2007) section 46 – encouraging or assisting offences, believing 

one or more will be committed. 

• In England and Wales you may be liable under section 44(1) of the Magistrates’ Court 

Act 1980, or section 8 Accessories and Abettors Act 1861 for an offence of aiding, 

abetting, counselling or procuring an offence. 

• In Scotland, where an offence has allegedly been committed, it is open to the 

Procurator  

Fiscal to advance a charge under the common law of ‘art and part’ liability. Section 293 

(1) of the Criminal Procedure (Scotland) Act 1995, makes it clear that ‘art and part’ 

liability is applicable (in principle) in relation to statutory offences, such as those 

contained within the PSIA 2001. 

• As an alternative to art and part liability, section 293 (2) of the Criminal Procedure 

(Scotland) Act 1995, also creates the separate offence of aiding, abetting, counselling, 

procuring or inciting the commission of a statutory offence. 

Page 26



 

 

5 

• In Scotland, common law offences of incitement of, or conspiracy to undertake conduct 

which if carried through would amount to an offence, could be applicable in principle. 

If convicted, or otherwise held accountable of any of the offences listed in this section, 

you will be liable to the same punishment as prescribed under the PSIA 2001 rather than 

any other provision. The SIA will consider wider criminal offending which impacts upon 

the regulatory regime. 

Am I responsible for what goes on in 

my company/on my premises? 

Security Company 
Yes. Where an offence is committed under the PSIA 2001 by a company or a Scottish 

partnership, and is committed with the consent or connivance of, or is attributable to, 

any neglect on the part of a director, manager, company secretary (or any other similar 

role), or partner, then that person, as well as the company or Scottish partnership, is 

guilty of the offence and can be punished accordingly. 

Customers and employees of security companies 
Yes. Consumers represent an important link in the chain of criminality – without 

customers being willing to flout the rules and accept the supply of unlicensed security 

operatives, there would be no market for them in the first place. The SIA also recognises 

employees of security companies, who may not be at a level to make decisions for the 

company, can also be responsible for offences being committed by others. We may 

consider if such customers and employees are liable for alleged offences as described in 

this leaflet under the heading What offence(s) could I have committed on page 4. 

Enforcement responses for offences 

under the PSIA 2001 
The SIA is an intelligence-led organisation, conducting enquiries into alleged offences in line 

with the National Intelligence Model. 

We have a range of options for non-compliance that fall short of criminal proceedings 

but can be effective in securing compliance quickly and avoiding costly formal 

proceedings. Our intelligence processes prioritise our activity on the level of risk 

Page 27



Enforcement – What to expect from the SIA 

 

presented, which determines how the suspected offending will be dealt with. 

For lower risk allegations, we may contact you via email or telephone, whilst higher priority 

cases will normally involve a face to face meeting. The most severe cases of non-

compliance will be dealt with via an SIA prosecution. 

What mitigating factors will the SIA 

take into account when assessing 

which enforcement response is 

appropriate 

The SIA expects compliance with the law at all times. 
If we find an individual or a company that is non-compliant, before deciding what action to 

take the following factors will, where appropriate, be taken into account: 

• The level of risk to public safety. 

• The progress made towards compliance with the law e.g. licence application submitted, 

removal of the ACS mark. 

• Whether an individual already holds a licence for other licensable sectors. 

• The scale and duration of non-compliance and level of any commercial advantage 

gained. 

• The current licensing processing times. 

• The availability of training to achieve the qualification for licensing. 

• Previous encounters with, or warnings given by the SIA or another agency. 

• Where there are circumstances in which Parliament has indicated a firm intention to 

exempt, or exclude, from licensing. 

• Links to wider criminality. 

• The regulator’s duty to have regard for business and economic growth. 

• Any other factor that we think is relevant in the circumstances. 

Page 28



 

 

7 

The weight given to any of these factors will be 

dependent on the particular case. 
Companies and individuals should be aware that: 

• They remain liable to prosecution for any offence committed. 

• Insurance cover of both the security suppliers and the security customer could be 

compromised if unlicensed operatives are being used. 

• Non-compliance with the licensing requirements could jeopardise a future application 

for a licence or accreditation under the Approved Contractor Scheme. 

Sanctions and disposal of offences 

Non-Statutory Disposals 
Whilst these enforcement options have no statutory basis, they are a result of the SIA’s 

power to prosecute offences which is the ultimate sanction that can be applied. The 

following options can be used against individuals, companies, and sometimes both: 

• SIA advice  

Short of a formal warning, the SIA can advise individuals or businesses of steps required 

to cease offending, and check to ensure this has been followed. 

• SIA verbal warnings  

These are recorded and may be taken into account in future enforcement decisions or 

as non-conviction information in a licence decision. 

• SIA written warnings  

These are issued where an offence under the PSIA 2001 has been detected. A written 

warning may be taken into account in future enforcement decisions or as non-

conviction information in a licence decision. 

• Improvement notices  

These are non-statutory sanctions in breach of offences, under the PSIA 2001. It sets 

out the improvements required and is discharged when we are satisfied the 

improvements have been made. 

While these responses do not result in criminal convictions, they can have an effect on 

you or your business. For example, if you have been given SIA 

Page 29



Enforcement – What to expect from the SIA 

 

warnings for working without a licence, this may affect whether or not you are granted a 

licence at a later stage. Similarly, if your company is subject to an improvement notice for 

non-compliance, this may affect the company’s inclusion in the Approved Contractor 

Scheme. 

Revoking your licence 
We will revoke your licence when it is found that you have not have met, or no longer 

meet, the criteria for the grant of a licence. This revocation is permanent and cannot be 

undone after we have made a final decision, although an appeal can be made as outlined in 

the next section. Your licence may be revoked for a number of reasons – for example, you 

have received a conviction, caution or warning for a relevant offence, or our ongoing 

checks have determined that you no longer have the right to work in the UK. Please see 

our publication “Get Licensed” for a full list of when your licence may be revoked. 

Suspending your licence 
The SIA is given the power under the PSIA 2001 to suspend licences. If your licence is 

suspended you will not be able to work legally in an area regulated by us unless that 

suspension is lifted. Licence suspensions have immediate effect. We will consider 

suspension only where we are reasonably satisfied that a clear threat to public safety could 

exist if we do not suspend the licence. This usually means that a serious offence has 

allegedly taken place, where the licence holder has been charged and bailed. We will 

suspend a licence in other circumstances if it is in the public interest to do so. Please see 

our publication Get Licensed for further information. 

If your licence is suspended, it will remain suspended until the matter is resolved -for 

example, we have revoked your licence or the matter that you have been charged with has 

been heard and you were found not guilty. All suspensions are monitored and reviewed 

every 90 days. The SIA can suspend a licence and at the same time initiate the revocation 

process for that licence. 

ACS Sanctions 
The SIA can take action when an approved contractor is in breach of ACS terms and 

conditions, which cover eligibility criteria, the ACS standard, and specific requirements such 

as those concerned with the deployment of staff under licence dispensation and the use of 

the ACS mark. 

Our publication ACS Sanctions Framework summarises the actions we will take in certain 

situations and may be downloaded from the ACS publications page  

www.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk/acs-sanctions 

Page 30



 

 

9 

Where non-conformance is identified either through intelligence gathering or during an 

ACS assessment, an improvement need may be raised. The contractor 

• is required to provide an action plan within five working days, setting out 

how they intend to address the non-conformance 

• is required to take action to address the non-conformance • may be 

subject to a re-visit by an independent assessing body. 

Where a number of improvement needs are identified, or individual improvement needs 

concern non-compliance with the law, then more serious sanctions, including the 

withdrawal of approval may be considered. 

However, we try to work with the contractor to obtain conformance whenever possible, 

without undermining the credibility of the Approved Contactor Scheme. 

Prosecution 
Where we consider enforcement actions short of prosecution are not appropriate, the 

case can be referred for formal investigation. This means the investigation will be 

undertaken by the SIA with a view to prosecution, or in partnership with other law 

enforcement agencies. Although prosecution (or, in Scotland, referral to the Procurator 

Fiscal) is not our only option, when we suspect offences under the Act have been 

committed you can be prosecuted in the criminal courts. These offences can be 

committed by both individuals and companies and can result in high penalties including 

confiscation of assets, fines and imprisonment. Where the SIA considers that wider 

criminal offending affects the integrity of the regulatory scheme, such offences may be 

considered. 

Our website provides information on the cases prosecuted by the SIA –  

www.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk/prosecutions 

The penalties on conviction for each of the offences under the PSIA 2001 are: 

Offence Penalty 

Page 31



Enforcement – What to expect from the SIA 

 

Engaging in licensable conduct without a 

licence – section 3 (1) 

Contravening licence conditions – 

section 9 (4) 

Obstructing SIA officials or those with 

delegated authority – section 19 (5) (a) 

Failure to provide information to the SIA 

– section 19 (5) (b) 

Making false statements to the SIA – 

section 22(1) 

Upon summary conviction at a 

Magistrates’ Court, Sheriff Court or 

District Court, a maximum penalty of six 

months imprisonment and/or an 

unlimited fine  

Using unlicensed persons in licensable 

conduct – section 5 (1) 

Upon summary conviction at a 

Magistrates’ Court, Sheriff Court or 

District Court, a maximum penalty of six 

months imprisonment and/or an 

unlimited fine  

Using unlicensed vehicle immobilisers – 

section 6 (1) 

Upon summary conviction at a 

Magistrates’ Court, Sheriff Court or 

District Court, a maximum penalty of six 

months imprisonment and/or an 

unlimited fine  

Falsely claiming approved contractor 

status – section 16 (2) 

Upon summary conviction at a 

Magistrates’ Court, Sheriff Court or 

District Court, an unlimited fine  

What factors will the SIA consider 

when taking a decision to prosecute 

or refer the case to the Procurator 

Fiscal in Scotland 
There are two main tests applied in making this decision: 

1. The SIA is satisfied that there is sufficient evidence to provide a realistic prospect of 

conviction against each suspect on each charge. 

Page 32



 

 

1

1 

2. The SIA considers it to be in the public interest to prosecute each suspect. 

We also comply with the requirements of the various Codes for prosecutors in each of the 

jurisdictions as listed below: 

England and Wales – the Code for Crown Prosecutors issued under section 10 of the 

Prosecution of Offences Act 1985. 

Scotland – the Crown Office and Procurator Fiscal Service Prosecution Code. 

Northern Ireland – the Code issued pursuant to the statutory duty placed on the Public 

Prosecution Service by section 37 of the Justice (Northern Ireland) Act 2002. 

Detention and arrest 
We would only usually seek your arrest/detention by the police if you are subject to formal 

investigation. 

SIA Investigations Officers do not have powers of arrest under the PSIA 2001, but there 

are circumstances when we may ask the police to support us. For instance, refusal to 

attend an audio recorded interview under caution at a police station without reasonable 

excuse is likely to be a circumstance where we would ask the police to consider arresting 

you. 

SIA powers of entry and information 

gathering 
Under section 19 (1) of the PSIA 2001, SIA Investigations Officers and those with written 

authority may enter any premises owned or occupied by a person appearing to be a 

regulated person under section 19 (8) of the PSIA 2001- other than premises exclusively 

used for residential purposes. 

Under section 19 (2) of the PSIA 2001, SIA Investigations Officers and those with written 

authority, may require anyone appearing to be a regulated person under section 19 (8) of 

the PSIA 2001 to produce their documents. These are the documents or other information 

relating to licensable conduct, or the provision of security industry services which that 

person may have undertaken. Investigations Officers may also require the production of 

documents or information relating to conditions on a licence (or in respect of an approval 

granted under section 15) in respect of that person. It is a statutory duty to comply with 

any of these requests for documentation or information. 

Page 33



Enforcement – What to expect from the SIA 

 

When exercising powers under section 19 (1) of the PSIA 2001 to enter premises, SIA 

Investigations Officers and those with written authority will: 

• state who they are and show their authorisation and evidence of their identity 

• state that they are using their powers of entry under the powers conferred by the PSIA 

2001 

• state the purpose for which the power is being exercised 

• act with regard for the Powers of Entry: Code of Practice (www.gov.uk/government/ 

publications/powers-of-entry-code-of-practice) in England and Wales where it has 

jurisdiction, but also as appropriate in Scotland and Northern Ireland 

• act in line with the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 

• make a record of the date and time of entry and the duration of the visit and conduct 

whilst there. 

This information is recorded and a copy of this record is made available on request. Any 

person present at the time of a visit where these powers to gain entry have been 

exercised, may request the above information and/or a copy of the record. 

In most cases, SIA Investigations Officers, or those with written authority, will give 

advance notice of any intention to visit. On occasion this may not be appropriate, so 

visits can be made without prior notification. The power of entry conferred by section 

19(1) of the PSIA 2001 shall only be exercised at a reasonable hour – this varies 

depending on the nature of your business. 

When exercising powers under section 19 (2) of the PSIA 2001 to request information, 

whether in person or by letter, an SIA Investigations Officers or those with written 

authority will: 

• state that they are using their powers for making a formal request for information 

under the powers conferred by the Act, and 

• state that failure to comply with any requirement of the request for information, 

without reasonable excuse, is an offence. 

SIA Investigations Officers, or those with written authority, are required to act reasonably 

and fairly in seeking information from individuals and organisations that hold details 

necessary to SIA enquiries. 

Page 34



 

 

1

3 

SIA Investigations Officers may take copies of documentation found on premises visited. 

Original documents will not be seized or removed by force but permission may be sought 

to remove them. Any original documents that are removed with consent, will be returned 

as soon as possible and a receipt given. 

GDPR and the Data Protection Act 2018 will not be contravened by providing information 

requested by SIA investigators or those with written authority. Under Schedule 2 Part 1 

Paragraph 5 of the Data Protection Act 2018, GDPR provisions do not prevent disclosure 

where the disclosure is required by law, such as where Section 19 of the PSIA 2001 

requires the supply of the information. 

If a recipient of an SIA request for information has difficulty meeting any part of the 

requirement for information, they may contact the SIA Investigations Officers or the 

individual with written authority to explain why, and make alternative arrangements for the 

provision of the information. 

SIA Investigations Officers are entitled to seek information by questioning any person 

appearing to be a regulated person under section 19(8) of the PSIA 2001; however they do 

not have the power to detain people. 

What can I expect from other 

agencies? 
Powers of inspection have been granted to relevant partner agencies, such as local 

authorities, who support SIA enforcement activities. 

The authority to inspect a licence is: 

• Granted in writing 

• Signed by an authorised signatory from the SIA 

• Granted for a fixed period of time. 

Whilst undertaking enquiries or investigations, the SIA will work with other agencies that 

may have an interest in the compliance of your activities with legislation or regulation 

other than the PSIA 2001. This is most likely to mean, although not exclusively, that the 

SIA will disclose information relevant to your compliance with other legislation or 

regulation where the law permits. 

Page 35



Enforcement – What to expect from the SIA 

 

At the end of SIA enquiries 
Notification of any further action will be made as soon as possible once an enquiry has 

been concluded. 

What are my rights? 
You are entitled to legal advice at any time. The Citizen’s Advice Bureau will be able to help 

you decide who to contact. 

In England and Wales, along with the police and anyone with a duty of investigating criminal 

offences or charging offenders, the SIA is required to follow the relevant provisions of the 

Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE) Codes of Practice. Code C which deals with 

detention, treatment and questioning of persons is the code most relevant to the activities 

of the SIA. In addition to Code C and where you are subject to formal investigation by the 

SIA, the following Codes may also be applicable: 

E – Code of practice on audio recording interviews with suspects 

F – Code of practice on visual recording with sound of interviews with suspectsG – 

Code of practice for the statutory power of arrest by police officers. 

The PACE Codes of practice regulate procedures in the investigation of crime and set 

down safeguards and protections for members of the public. 

Equivalent provision is made for Northern Ireland by the Police and Criminal Evidence 

(Northern Ireland) Order 1989. 

In Scotland, the way criminal offences are investigated is mainly governed through a 

combination of the Criminal Procedure (Scotland) Act 1995 and common law. 

How do I appeal against an 

enforcement decision? 
Licence revocation – If we judge it necessary to revoke your licence, we will write to 

you, providing the basis for our decision and we will invite you to supply further 

information. You will then have 21 days from the date on our decision letter to provide a 

response. Your response may address any factual errors in our assessment (for example, an 

Page 36



 

 

1

5 

error in respect of identity, or an error in assessing your competence or criminal history) 

and we may also invite you to provide mitigating information. 

If we do not receive a response from you within the 21 days, we will write again to confirm 

that the licence has been revoked. Once revocation takes effect you will have 21 days in 

which to exercise your right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court or Sheriff Court. 

If you do send in a response, we would give it due consideration, and we will write to you 

to inform you of our final decision. 

If we decide it is still necessary to revoke your licence, you will then have 21 days from the 

date of this second decision letter in which to exercise your right of appeal to a 

Magistrates’ Court or Sheriff Court. 

Licence suspension – If we judge it necessary to suspend a licence, we will write to 

inform you of this, providing the basis for our decision. The licence holder will then have 

21 days in which to exercise a right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court or Sheriff Court. At 

the same time they may also wish to tell us of any factual errors in our assessment – for 

example an error in respect of their identity, or an error in assessing their competence or 

criminal history. 

ACS sanctions – You may ask the SIA to review any decision relating to your approved 

contractor status. Any such request should be made within 21 days of notification of the 

sanction, including your reasons for requesting a review. We will respond to you in writing 

with the outcome of our review. 

If, following any review as outlined above, we make a final decision to withdraw your 

approval, you may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court or Sheriff Court. You must lodge any 

such appeal directly with the court within 21 days of notification of our decision. 

Enforcement action – If you wish to appeal against our decision, the appeal containing all 

relevant details should be sent to: 

Deputy Director Partnerships and Interventions 

Security Industry Authority 

PO Box 

74957 

London E14 

1UG. 

Prosecution 
Appeals in relation to criminal proceedings are dealt with by the appropriate courts in 

England, Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland. You are strongly advised to seek 

Page 37



Enforcement – What to expect from the SIA 

 

independent legal advice on such matters, especially if you have not already done so during 

the time you have been subject to formal investigation by the SIA. 

How do I complain? 
Complaints about how SIA Investigations Officers or those with written authority have 

employed or exercised their powers can be made through the ‘Contact us’ link on our 

website or from your SIA online account. Please state that you are making a formal 

complaint in your message to make sure that it reaches our complaints team promptly.   

Complaints can also be submitted by post to: 

Complaints Team 

Security Industry Authority 

PO Box 74957 

London 

E14 1UG 

We will acknowledge complaints within 3 working days of receipt and aim to respond to all 

complaints within 20 working days from our initial acknowledgement. If you are not 

satisfied with the way we handle your complaint, you can ask for your complaint to be 

reviewed by a senior member of SIA staff. If you remain dissatisfied following an internal 

review, you can ask for your complaint to be escalated to the Parliamentary and Health 

Services Ombudsman (PHSO) by speaking to your local MP. 

Our full Complaint Handling Policy and procedure can be found on our website 

www.sia.homeoffice. gov.uk. Click on ‘Contact Us’ at the top of the page and select ‘How 

to register a complaint’. 

Independent legal advice can be sought at any time. The Citizens Advice Bureau will be able 

to help you decide who to contact. Check online for details of your local bureau. 

Page 38



 

 

The SIA logo is owned by the 

Security Industry Authority and may 

not be used without the express 

permission of the SIA. 

www.sia.homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk 

Printed on paper containing minimum  

75% recycled fibre content 

GEN/18-19/20 

Page 39

http://www.sia.homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3          OFFICIAL 
 

 

OFFICIAL 
Security Industry Authority  PO Box 49768  London  WC1V 6WY 

Phone 020 7025 4100 Fax 020 7025 4101 E-mail info@sia.homeoffice.gov.uk 
www.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk 

Your ref:   

 

 

 

Our ref: 

 

 

Ronnie Megaughin 
Head of Compliance and Inspections 
Security Industry Authority 
PO Box 74957 
London 
E14 1UG 
 
 
 dd.mm.yyyy 

Dear Mr Megaughin, 

 

 

 

  

Re: Request for powers of inspection conferred under section 19(2) of The 
Private Security Industry Act 2001 for the purposes of the function of 
the Security Industry Authority. 
 

 

I understand that SIA partners may be conferred under section 19(2) of The Private 
Security Industry Act 2001 the authority to demand production of a licence, whether 
in the capacity of SIA official business or secondary to other official business.  

For these purposes only, I understand that the SIA confers from the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001 such authority to applicable teams* within organisations who can 
be reasonably expected to require such authority. It will then be the responsibility of 
the organisation to decide and manage who within their applicable team(s) holds this 
authority.  

I hereby request that the following team(s) be granted powers of inspection under 
section 19(2) of the Private Security Industry Act 2001 and confirm that they will be 
bound by the terms and conditions for the use of this authority as so contained in The 
SIA Enforcement Policy Code of Conduct.  
 
I undertake to inform the SIA via email to IEAdmin@sia.gov.uk whenever any 
member of the team uses the S19 (2) power of inspection. 
 

Name of applicable team Team details (if 
required) 

Telephone  
number  

 

 

  

 

 
  

Page 41

mailto:IEAdmin@sia.gov.uk


OFFICIAL 

  

OFFICIAL 

 

 
  

 

I confirm that the members of these team(s) are fit and proper and appropriately 
trained to be granted such authority. 

I agree to inform the SIA immediately should any of the listed teams no longer 
require such authority (e.g. they are renamed or disbanded) in accordance with 
section 19 of the Private Security Industry Act 2001 or if there are any other 
amendments to this list.  

 

Signed ……………………………………………………..    

Print name ………………………………………………… 

Position ……………………………………………………. 

Organisation 
……………………………………………………………………………....…………. 

………………………………………………………….……………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………….……………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………..... 

Email ………………………………………………………………………………… 

Date………………………. 

 

* For the purposes of this authority, the definition of ‘Applicable Team’ shall include: 

- Employed members of Local Authority Licensing Teams (Licensing Officers etc.) 

- Employed members of Police Force Licensing Teams (Licensing Enforcement Officers 
etc.) 

- Other applicable Partner Agencies (considered on a case by case basis by the SIA).   

 

Page 42



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
                         REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

    
meeting date:  2 NOVEMBER 2021 
title:  GAMBLING ACT 2005 – REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES – 

OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION 
submitted by:  CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR 
 

1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To consider and approve the Council’s Statement of Principles under the Gambling 

Act 2005 for 2022-2025. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

 Community Objectives  } 
   

 Corporate Priorities   } 
  

 Other Considerations  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Gambling Act 2005 (the “Act”) gave the Council responsibility for licensing a 

variety of types of premises, for example betting offices and arcades.  There are very 
few premises in the Council’s area, which hold such licences.  However, many 
premises licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 also hold permits under the Act for 
gaming machines. 

 
2.2 The Act requires Councils to have a statement of principles, to publish it every three 

years and to review it from time to time.  The Council’s revised statement is required 
to be in place by January 2022. 

 
2.3  On 7 September 2021, the Council’s Licensing Committee reviewed the Council’s 

Statement of Principles on Gambling (“Statement”) as required by the Act. The 
Statement was approved by Committee to form the basis of a consultation exercise. 
That consultation ran from 10 September 2021 to 24 October 2021. 

 
2.5 At the date of this report the Council has received no responses from those consulted.  

If responses are received before the consultation closes, they will be reported to 
Committee at the meeting. 

  
3 ISSUES.  
 
3.1 In the absence of responses, Committee is asked to approve the Statement as set out 

in Appendix 1 to this report and recommend its adoption to Full Council.  
  

DECISION  

 

The Council seeks to be a well-managed Council. 
Reviewing polices which guide the Council when 
making decisions contributes to this objective. 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

 Resources – N/A 
 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – It is a statutory requirement to review the 
policy. 
 

 Political – No implications identified. 
 

 Reputation – Reviewing the statement will enhance the Council’s reputation as a 
well-managed Council. 
 

 Equality & Diversity – No implications identified. 
 
5 RECOMMENDED THAT COUNCIL 
 
5.1 Approve the Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act 2005 for  2022-2025 and 

recommend its adoption to Full Council. 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER       MARSHAL SCOTT  
  
SOLICITOR                   CHIEF EXECUTIVE                            
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 Report to Licensing Committee 7 September 2021 
 
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216 
 
 
 

 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                     
meeting date: TUESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2018 
title: EXPIRY OF WHALLEY CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT –   REVIEW     
                              OF RESPONSES TO RECENT SURVEY 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the results of the Cumulative Impact Assessment Survey. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

 Community Objectives -        } 
 

 Corporate Priorities -   } 
 

 Other Considerations -  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Committee will recall that a report was submitted in June 2021 requesting that 

Committee review and consider implementation for a further period of the Cumulative 
Impact Policy in Whalley.  Committee resolved to authorise the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services to make enquiries of the responsible authorities to assess 
whether there is sufficient evidence to support a Cumulative Impact Policy for Whalley 
and the area to which the policy would relate; consult informally with licensees in 
Whalley, the Parish Council and community groups and to report back with 
recommendations based on responses received. 

 
2.2 As a result the Council set up a cumulative impact survey both online and in paper 

format.  A link to the survey was published on the Council’s website and publicised 
through press releases, social media and by letters sent to the Parish Council, all 
licensed premises, ward Councillors and Whalley Chamber of trade on 20 September 
2021.  The survey closed on 10 October 2021.  The survey related to the area of 
Whalley and Painter Wood to reflect the ward boundaries.  A map showing this area 
outlined in blue accompanied the survey as did a list of all premises within that area 
and a map showing their location.  Copies of these documents are enclosed as 
Appendix 1.   

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The Council received 65 responses.  The results of those responses have been 

collated into a report which is enclosed as Appendix 2.  Committee should note the 
contents and in particular the responses to questions 5-8 and decide whether this 
evidences sufficient concern about crime and disorder, public safety, public nuisance, 
or protection of children from harm in the Whalley and Painter Wood area to progress 
to the next stage of the process.   

  

DECISION  

The Council aims to be a well-managed Council 
and these proposals support that objective. 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



3.2 Should Committee decide that it should be progressed then further evidence must be 
collated to allow the Council to assess whether there is a sound evidential basis to any 
decision to publish a cumulative impact assessment.  This may include: 

 Local crime and disorder statistics including statistics on specific types of crime 
and crime hotspots. 

 Statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences 

 Health related statistics such as alcohol related emergency attendances and 
hospital admissions. 

 Environmental health complaints, particularly in relation to litter and noise. 

 Complaints recorded by the Local Authority, which may include complaint 
raised by the local residents or resident’s associations. 

 
3.3 The Council would then consider this evidence alongside its own evidence of the 

impact of licensable activities within its area and consider in particular the times at 
which licensable activities are carried on.  Information which may inform consideration 
of these issues includes: 

 Trends in licence applications, particularly trends in applications by types of      
premises and terminal hours. 

 Changes in terminal hours of premises. 

 Premises’ capacities at different times of night and the expected concentrations 
of drinkers who will be expected to be leaving premises at different times. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 

 Resources – no implications identified 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – the Council is required to review any Cumulative 
Impact Assessment at least every three years 

 Political – no implications identified 

 Reputation – no implications identified 

 Equality and Diversity – no implications identified 
 
5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to seek and collate the evidence 

necessary to create an evidence base and to consult formally upon the proposed 
continuation of the cumulative impact assessment for Whalley and Painter Wood as 
required by the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR  CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 
 
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
 

Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: 2 NOVEMBER 2021 
title: TAXI ENFORCEMENT OPERATION 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the results of an inspection of licensed private hire and 

hackney carriage vehicles. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

 Community Objectives  } 
 

 Corporate Priorities  }  
 

 Other Considerations  }  
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 On 6 September 2021, the Council’s Taxi Enforcement Officer carried out an 

inspection of licensed private hire and hackney carriage vehicles, in a joint operation 
with the Police, and Vehicle and Operator Services Agency. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The Council’s Taxi Enforcement Officer inspected eight vehicles. Six were found to be 

of the required standard. Two vehicles were not of the required standard. The drivers 
of both vehicles were served with delayed prohibition notices requiring work to be 
carried out on their vehicles within 7 days. The notices related to worn brake pads 
and worn ball joints. The Council’s Taxi Enforcement Officer has monitored whether 
this work has been carried    out.  He has confirmed that the works have been carried 
out and both vehicles have been issued with new MOT certificates.  

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications 
 

 Resources – No implications identified.  
 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – Improved control of licence holders should 
improve public safety. 

 

 Political - No implications identified.  
 

 Reputation – Improved public safety will enhance the Council’s reputation.  
 

 Equality and Diversity – No implications identified.  
 

 

INFORMATION 

 

Consideration of these issues will promote the 
Council’s aim to be a well-managed Council 

Page 105

Agenda Item 9



 

5 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Committee is asked to note the contents of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 

Page 106



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

meeting date: 2 NOVEMBER 2021 
title:  LICENSING SUBCOMMITTEE TRAINING FOR ELECTED MEMBERS 
submitted by:  CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER 
 

 

1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of training to be provided on Licensing Sub-committees. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

 Community Objectives -  } 
 

 Corporate Priorities -   } 
 

 Other Considerations -  } 
 

2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 As Committee is aware Licensing Sub-committees are held periodically to determine 

licensing applications and/or review licences. It is important that Councillors receive 
training on this aspect of their role.   

  
3 ISSUES 
 

3.1  The training will focus on the procedural and legal issues surrounding Sub-committees 
relating to hackney carriage and private hire licensing.  It is intended that this will be 
followed by a further training session in relation to Sub-committees held to determine 
issues under the Licensing Act 2003.  

  
4. RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications 
 

 Resources – Resources will be required to make arrangements for the training 
 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – Improved knowledge of Members and 
Officer 
 

 Political – No implications identified. 
 

 Reputation – Improved public safety will enhance the Council’s reputation. 
 

 Equality & Diversity – no implication identified 
  

 

INFORMATION 

Consideration of these issues will promote the 
Council’s aim to be a well-managed Council. 
 

Page 107

Agenda Item 10



5. CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Note the contents of this report. 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER                   MARSHAL SCOTT     
SOLICITOR          CHIEF EXECUTIVE                             
 
 
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216 
 

 

Page 108


	Agenda
	2 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Annual review of Fees and Charges
	Appendix 1 Private hire and hackney fees proposed 2022
	Appendix 2 Scrap metal fees and charges 2022
	Appendix 3 Fees and charges Sex Establishments

	6 Private Security Act 2001
	Appendix 1 PSIA 2001 - S19 April 2013
	Appendix 2 SIA Enforcement Policy Code of Practice 2018
	Appendix 3 S19 Powers Request Form 08 2021

	7 Gambling Act 2005 - Review of Statement of Principles - Outcome of consultation
	Gambling Act Statement of Principles Consultation - Appendix 1

	8 Expiry of Whalley Cumulative Impact Assessment - Review of Responses to Recent Survey
	Whalley CIA report Appendix 1
	Whalley CIA Appendix 2

	9 Taxi Enforcement Operation - Update
	10 Member Training

